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KENYA ROADS BOARD FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OIH IUNE 2018

Our Vision:

An fficient road networkfor a pros?trous nation

Otrr Mission:

To fu*lt, ooersee and coordinate road maintenance,
rehabilitation and deo el opment thr ough o ptimal utili z ati on

of lesources for a sustainable road network

Our Core Values:

Professionalism
Passion for Quality

Customer Seruice Excellence
lntegrity

Iruclusiaefless
lnnoaation
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KENYA ROADS BOARD FUND
FINANCIAL STATEI\,{ENT5 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 10r'r IUNE 2018

KEY ENTITY TNFORMAT AND MANAGEMENT

a) Backgroundlnformation:

Kenya Roads Board (KRB) is a state bodv corporate established under Chapter 408 of
the l-avvs of Kenya 'Kenya Roads Board Act' which came into effect under l,egal Notice
No. 7 of 1999. Thc Board was established in accordance with the Chapter 446 (StaE
Corpora tions Act) of the Laws of Kenya, which is' An Act of Parlianent to make prwision
Jttr tlu eslnblislnnanl of stnte corporations: f'tr control nnd regulntion ofstate corporations; and

.ior conncctetl purposts'.

The tsoard is domicilcd and operates within the Republic of Kenya. The regishred
office is as set out on page 5.

b) Principle Activity:

As stipulated in the Kenya Roads Board Act, "1999 "T'he object and purpo*forwhich ttw
Boord is established is to ouer*e tJu road nchtork in Kenya nnd coordinate the maintaunce,
relmltilitntiatt nni dncloltnrcnt funded ty the ltmd nnd to nduise tlrc Minister responsible for
nntters f,crlni,ti,tg lo ronds tm all nntters relnted tlrcrcto."

Specific Mandates:

"['lre'nranclates of KRB.rre provided for in the Kcnva Roacls Board Act, No. 7 ot7999
as hercunder:

n) 'coordittnte tlrc tt1ttnnal utilization of the Fund in implenrcntation of programmes relntitg
to tlrc nruintennnct, rclnbilitntion nnd deaelopnrcnt oJ lhe rand nehoork;

h) seek to achiase optimal efuicncy nnd ccr.t ctfectiaeness in rondworks frmded by the Fund;
c) nnnag( the Fund;
d) based ttn a .ftue ycar road inoestntent progrnntnrc lpproued fu the Minister and tlu

Ministcr fttr Firuutce, detenilne tlw allocation of .frnancinl resourus from any otlrcr
sol,rc? nunilnltlc to tlw Bonrd required by rmd agencies for thc nnintenance,
rehnhilitation nnd deaelopnrent of the rmd rchoark to ensure thnt the allocatian of funds
is peggtd to spccifc categories of roads nnd thnt not less than
(i) hutrtty huo pcrce nl (22% ), uhich shnll lt dcposited into n spccinl bank account to tte

cnllcd Constitueilcy Rmd Fund Accottttt ta he maintainetl by eoery constifuency of
rttonie s front tlrc Fund is allocated equnlly to nll Constihrcncies in the country to lte
ndntinistared try tlv Rural Roads Atrtlnrity;

(ii) ttn percerrt (70%) of the ntonies front tlrc Fund is allocated for tlrc ntaintenance or
dctttloltntanl o.f link ronds behueen conslituencies and to *nte ns Cwernment
corrnterpart Jirnds in fundingworks on nffal roads, to tn administered by the Kenya
Rural Roads Authority and that the said per centunt slnll be equally distributed to
tlu constihuncies where Kenya Rurol Roads Atttlrority hns tlrc mnndate,

(iii) forty percent (40%) of the ntonics from the Funtl is allouted in respect of tlrc nntionnl
ronds to tte ndninistcred W tltu National Higlutays Autlnrity;

(ia) fifteenprant(15%)of tlrcmoniesfrom tlv Fundisallocatedinrespectofthc Urban
Ronds Authority;

(tt) onc percenl (1%) of the monies front tlw Fund is allocated in respect of roads in
national pnrks nnd reseraes to be adninistered by lhe Kenyawildlife Sentia, snd

3
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KENYA ROAb6 BOARD FUND
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e)

The entifl's day-to-day management is under the follon,ing key organs:

- Boarcl of Directors
- ec'qoun$ng officer/ Executive Director
- MpiagBnent

-&'

d) Fiduciary Management:

The key management personnel who held office during the financial year ended 30th
June 2018 and who had dirrt fiduciary responsibiliw were:

1. Executive Director - Eng.JacobZ, Ruwa, OGW
2. General Mlnager, Finance - CPA Rashid K. Mohamed, MBS
3. General Mfnager, Technical Compliance - Eng. David O. Orwenyo
4. General Mdnager, Planning and Programming - Eng. Hudson W. Kihumba

(Retired: 31't May 2018)
5. General Manager, kgal and Corporate Affairs - Ms. Lucy K. Gathika
6. Senior Manager, Human Resources and Administration - Mr. Hamoud M.

Mguza

e) Fiduciary Ovepight Arrangemente:

The following committees provide fiduciary oversight over the management and
activities of the Board;
- Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Board
- Finance Committee oithe Board
- J'echnical Committee of the Boarrl
- Human Resources and lv{anagelnetlt Committee of t}re lJoard

l)

8)

h)

i)

j)

k)

(ai) a nwxintum of kuo lnrccnt (27o) of the ntqyuel fip.m tlw Fund is nllocnted in respect
of recunant expeiilituire of the Bmrd undtr se:itiottt 31(S).

ensure lhat tlu remainder.of the nrcnies from tlw Furttl (10%) clcscribed in paragraph (tt)
slnll ti alloated annwlly by ttu Board with ttr opprwal of the Minister-to' rond
i.rwelfunt programme dytued from the fve-year roa,i inaestmeat progromme opyrrwed
bv the Minister responsittle for roads and thc Ministcr for Finnnct.
ensure llwt n mnximunt of ten peru:nt (10%) of nll nrcnies nllocatctl to each road agency
is utiliad for datelopment purlroses by the said agenqt
monito| and anlutfu, lry nrcans of technical, financiat and perforrrance audits, the
deliuery of gods, worla arul xruices fitnded by the Fund;
in imphmenting pmagrcph (9, pav due regard to pubtic procurcment nnd disponl
rcgulatitns and additionat guidelines issued ir npprooed by ttie Minister;
recommind to thc Minister nppropriate lwels of rud ,rte, ilwrgrr, frrcs, pgrlxllies, leoics
or any sums rcquired to he cctllected un.ler tlv Rond Maintcnance ltuy Fund Act, 'lgg3
nnd paid into lhe Fund;
reconmrcnd to the Minister such yrkrlic reuiews of tlu Fuel Leuy as ore necessanl.for thc
purposes of tlu Fund, and
identify, quntifu and reconmrcnd ttt the lvlinisler such other pole ntial s()rrrccs oJ'reaenue
as n ay tn wailnble to thc Fund for tlu doelopment, rehnbilitation nnd nnintetnncc of
rosds.'

c) Key Mahagement:
t

fr
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J

f) Registered Officg/Headquarters:

Kenya Re-I'orvers, 3rd Floor
Off Ragati Road, Uppcr IIill
I).O. I]<rx 737"18- 00200, City Square
N;\IROBI, KENYN

g) Contacts

l'el. No.: +980000, 2722865 / 6
Fax No.: 251-020-27n1.61
l'Vebsi te: www.krb.go.ke
Il-m a il address: info@krb.go.ke

h) Principal Bankers:

Central Bank of Kenya
Haile Selassie Avenuc
P.O, Box 60000

City S<luare 00200

Nairobi, Kenya

i) lndependent Auditors:

Auditor General
Officc of the Auditor Ceneral
Annivcrsary Towers, University Way
P.O. Ilox 300&{, GPO 00100

Nairobi, Kenya

i) Principal l.egal Adviser:

'fhe Attorney General
Stae law Office
Harambee Avenue
P.O. Box 40'1"12, City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenya
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rrrr soAnp 4r prnrcrons

Ttre Board drawu representatives from iublic *a priruto stakehotders as set out in Section
7 of dre Kenya Roads Board Act, 1.999. Board members n ?( 2077 /2018 include the
following:-

Kenya Roads Board

Automobile n*rociatio,', oi funyu
Appointed: 60, !une, 2018

Mr. Julius Korir , pS, State l)epartsnent of Infrastructure - Ministry of
'l'ra nsport, Infrastruclure, Housing, U rban Deve lopment and
Public Works

t I

Dr. Kamau Thugge, CBS

Mr. Nelson Marwa, EBS

j Ms. MBS

..-_*_-__. -)1.._ -. - +____
: 

-noE 
a'crh. i;"i M;'i"A; cF.S*

itlt

15,'fhe National Treasu ry

r t€, Ministry of Devolution & the ASATS

I5, Ministry of East African Community and Regional

, [5, Siate Deparhnent of Transport - Ministry of Transport,
I Infraskucture, Housing, Urban Development and Public

State Department of Transport - Ministry of Transport,
lnfrastructure, Housing, Urban Development and Public
Works
Ttru Ni-tiona l'Ireasury

E.g,l
wg{s-
trnriitution of ingine*rr of renyu

ri

i Mr. Wilson NdirrnguKamau - i i*dti;t" o? 5u*eyors,rf (enya

CPA Charles Tirok l-institute of Certified Public Accountants of Kenya

Ms. Monika Solanki Kenya r\ssociation of Tour Operators

Mr. Michael Karanja Kenya Association of Manufacturers

Mrt. Mary W. Wfmbugu League of Kenya Women Voters

Mr. Nenrwel

*

-l

Mr. Ontweka Onderi Naftali

Mr.James Mwanzia

Mr. Edward M.

r Mr. Alfred M. Kitolo

r State Department for Devolution - Ministry of Devolution &
the ASAIS

Ministry of East African Community and Regional
I)evelopnren!

State Department of '['ransport - lvlinistry of Transprlrt,
lnfrastruchrre, I{ousing, Urban Development and Public
\{orks

I Mr, Pau
I

I
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MANAGEUENT TEA.hl

Executive Director Eng. Jacob Z. Ruwa, OGW

CPA Rtotdd K'Ltiirhrmedr.}186,{i ^i,i 
:i,'i i;-r' 
,

Eng. David O. Orwenyo

Eng, Hudson W. I(humba 6cm"* lriMry zns)

Ir[r. Lucy K c'a|fifu

Mr. Hamoud M. Mguza

General Manager,
Finance

General Manager,
Technical Compliance

GeneralManager,
Planning and Programming

General Manager,
Iegal and CorporaE Affai$

Senior Manager,
Human Resources and Administration -

7



{
!d

t

I KENYA ROADS BOARD FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH JUNE 2018

CHAIRPERSON'S STATEMENT

On behalf of the Members of the Board, it is my pleasure to present the Annual Report and
Financial Statements for Kenya Roads Board Fund for the year ended 3gtrr June 2018.

General Economic Environment

Economic growth decelerated to a S-year low of an estimated 4.8 percen t n ZO17 from 5.g
percent in 2016. Poor rains, slowdown in credit growth to the private sector and election-
in_au19a 

uncertaint5r weighed down on economic activity in2017.This is according to the
World Bank's Kenya Economic Update released in ApriiZOfA.

!n_f qroryth is projected to recover to 5.5 percent in 2018, and steadily rise to 6.1 percent
by 2020 when output gaps in the economy would have closed. On the upside, the rebound
in economic activity is predicated on favorable rains which should be supportive of the
ongoing recovery in the agriculture sector, the dissipation of political tension and the
strengthening of the global economy.

However, partially mitigating the lift from the upside drivers are the rise in oil prices;
down-sizing of the fiscal stimulus from earlier y"irr; and the still weak credit growth in
the private sector' Regarding the latter, the baseline assumes that the ongoing diJcourse to
repeal the interest rate cap will be successful in 2018, thereby supporting a roLust recovery
in private sector credit growth in2019 and beyond

National Agenda

The Country is now gearing up to implement the Third Mid-Term plan (MTp III). The
Sectoral Plans are ready and the MTP III is set be rolled out at the beginnin g of ZdA.8/O
financial year. During this period, the country will also be implemer,ing stiategies that
will help it realize the Sustainable Development Goals and the aspiration oI Africa-Agenda
2063.

Specifically, the Government has outlined four big priority areas (Big 4 Agenda) for the
next five years' These are agricultural and food security, affordablJo,rri-i.g, increased
share of manufacturing, and universal health 

"or"rug". 
The attainment of hese goals

should help advance the Vision 2030 agenda - helpingk"r,yu to move forward towards a
middle-income economy with a high standard of living.

Strategy

The Board has continued to implement its five-year Strategic Plan. The Board formulated
a Business Plan for FY 2017/18 which was extracted from ihe fire year strategic plan. The
deliverables that were set out in the business plan and performance contract foi y zotz 1rcwere achieved.

Specifically, the Kenya Roads Board Fund collections exceeded the estimates, the ApRp
was aPproved and implemented during the year, the Board carried out monitoring and
evaluation of utilization of the KRB Fund, and the internal capacity was strengthened to
ensure effective delivery of the Board,s mandates.

\.
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I

Corporate Governance

Strong Corporate Governance is integral to the Board's long-term success and is essential
in delivering the KRB's strategy. The Statement of Corporate Governance, included in this
report details the measures that the Board has undertaken to ensure a robust corporate
govemance environment.

Future Outlook

Kenya Roads Board shall also work closely with other sectors to improve the social and
economic well-being of Kenyans. Accessibility across the country shalt improve
connectivity, efficiency, safety of road transport and regional integration. These among
others will momentarily lead to the realization of govemment development agenda.

Kenya Roads Board shall provide world class services in Road Fund management to make
Kenya globally competitive and a prosperous nation.

Acknowledgement

On behalf of KRB directors and staff, I express my sincere gratitude to the Government of
Kenya, Ministry of Transport, Infraskucfure, Housing, Urban Development and Public Works,
Road Agencies, taxpayers and other stakeholders for their continued support. This has
Sone a long way towards building a solid institution that is responsive to its mandates and
stakeholders' expectations.

I also wish to thank my fellow directors for dedicating their time and effort to steer the
Board. Their advice and guidance has played a key role in the attainment of the impressive
results. Our management and staff have risen to the challenges with a great deal of
resourcefulress, diligence, resilience and determination. We are proud of the team and
greatly appreciate their ability and commitment towards achieving the Board's vision,
mission and objectives.

I look forward to a promising financial year 2018/19. God Bless you all.

r^a eolB
Ms. RITA DATE
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, KENYA ROADS T]OARD FUND
FlNi\NCIAL STAI'EN,IENTS [;OR't.HIl yEAIt ENDED j0ilrJUNE 2018

REPORT OFTHE EXECIJTIVE DIRECTOR

Overview

Kenya Rtl:rcls Board has contintrcc'l to carry orrt its rnirnc'latc of effectively,rrrrcl cfficisntlv
lnanaging the Ken\,.r Roarls Bo.rrr.l lruncl. \,\i,are happy, to rrtrtc, that the Ih.rrti has achievccl
its .rntlritious pt'rforrnance hrrl;r.ts st't in tht' .rrrntral [rusint,ss l.larr for i:y 20 l 7 /?Olg.

Funding I{equirements in the Road Sub-sector

'fhe 
$eneral condition clf the tn,rirt tnrrrk antl urbtrrr rocrrl nctw'orks havc improvecl srncc

Road [r4airrtenance I-evv Furrd was establishecl, br,rt a lot still nt,ccls Lo be tlone io bring most
t'rf the netrvork to good cottclition. Accordirrpl to tht' Roatl St:t'trrr Inveshrrcrrt lrrr.,gr.rriimc'l ,

RSIPl (2010 - 2011), it rvas estinr,rterl that.rbout Kshs.70 billion rvirs recluirecl for ihe annual
maintenance of the entire ro,rti rlc.tn,rrrk. -l'his did not lrorvcvcr incluclc thc lr.tcklog
rnaintenarnct:.

Followirrg the increase of the fuel lcvv ratc fronr Kshs. 12 to Kshs. I8 pcr litre of fut:l in lune
201 6, the atrtrual fuel le'vv collectirttrs havc increasctl Lry.rpprori11atc.l1,309t. I'hc 1>r6jcctecl
annttal collection for FY 2018/201c), e.xcludirrg, Roacl Annr.rit], ljuncl is Kshs. 57 billion.'l'his
collccfion is hcxvcve'r still irtlrlcquate ior roarl rnaintr.narrce givcrr that backlog
mnintenancc ltas not been acldrcssed f ullv.

In order tlterefore to generate aclclitional frrrrds for maintenancc, the C,ovcrnnrt'nt Llrror.rgl.r
KI{ll is consiclcrirtg .rlternativc' roacl nr.rir'rtt,lr.rrrce, Iirrancing rrrcr'lrauisrns such rrs

it-tcorpttr,rting long-tcrm inlrastrtrcturr'Lroncls,rnrl pu[rlic privatc [r(]rtn(rrsllips, introtitrcirrll
lc'r'ies otr tnotor vehiclc ittsur;rnccr anil anrrual licenscs,.'rncl rrtlrr.r roatl uscr chargt's.

I;urthcr, Kll,ll is currelttly undertakutg a cletailcd revicrv of roarl construclion rnatcrials
rvith the vieu, of reconrntettcling cost-effectivc matcri.rls ftlr roati clt-.vcloprrrt-,nt ,rrrd
maintenance. Other potential savings are expected to bc realizeri from rcvisecl road
construction spccifica tions,

Ceneral Condition of l{oads

r\ccording to tlre latest dat.r fronr the l(oad lrrventory and Corrclititxr Survey (RIC]S) of 2009
ancl tlrat af ?017, tlrc road nchvork in Keru,a is gcntrallv in go<'rcl anrl f.rir crrnditiorr.

'l'he roatl nctrvork conditicln h.rs irnprrtlvctl lronr.lJ;q" (fair) in 2009 to 57'l; (g,t':orl/t',rir) in
2017. The irnprovemcnt itr gcrtcr,rl rclarl concliti(rn over tlrt,l'ears is,rttributed tr'r tht'
increase in I{MLl;;rllocatet{ to thc I(oael .,\licncies antl the srrrvL'illance (,ru'il'rl out bv KIll}
on the ust: oi the RN,l Ll:.

Road Reclassification

/\ tlew'ro,rd classific.rtiort systc.nl Lrasctl on nracl l'unctiorr anci t:ovt'r'ing tht, c.rttire roarl
ncfn'ork n'as acloptetl and gazcttcrl in Janu.rry 2016,'l'lrc rrcw'roacl classification Lrloarlly
clefined National Trunk Roads arrrl Countv l(oads.'l-his irrvt'rrtorl'561,r:1'1; roads lvith
r'vav-leavcs greater than 9.0 rtr ancl n,as basetl on rotld invcntorv and conditiorr
.survev cirrrie(-l out betrvecn tht'\'r.ttr 2007 ancl 2009,

t0
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The road network was inventoried at 161,451.50 kilometres long comprising of 39,995.10

kilometres of National roads and 721A56.40 kilometres of County roads - as eho$tn in the

table belor,'';

7,699.2A

I 21,445.50

i Sub-total
r--D - -*- -

39,995.10 : National Roads
23.30

.70

9,625.60

89,598.80
1'21'459.4a 

i 
C_o_U!y [oads. _-.

Sum-total 161,45150 Entire Network

Roads lnventory and Condition Suwey (RICS) for the narrotil made

Kenya Roads Board obtained funde from the World Bank tttrough the Kenya Trqoport
Sector Support Project (I(ISSP) and is undertaking a Roads lnvenbry and Condition
Survey EICS) for the narrow roads.

Ttris study commenced in August 2016 and is substantally complete. Key outputs from
the Consultancy include:

i. A total of approximately 23O000 km of roads have been inventoried'
ii. The road conditions for the pavd and unpaved road network have been

established.
iii. The percentage of rural population living within 2km of good and fair roads has

been determined.

The Annual Public Roads Programme (APRP)

As per the Kenya Roads Board Act No. 7 of 7999, KRB has a mandaE to oversee the road

network in Kenya and coordinaE the maintenance, rchabilitation and development
funded by RMLF and to advise the MinisEr on all matErg related thereto.

Section 19 ( ) of the KRB Act requires KRB to review, individually, the Arurual Road Works
Programmes (ARWPs) submitEd by Road Agencies and consolidaE these ARWPs intoan
Annual Public Roads Programme (APRP). During the year, the Board allocaEd and

released funds in accordance with the Annual Public Roads Programme (APRP).

The APRP W 2077 /2018 was fully tunded and the APRP F( 2m8/2019 has been compiled.
The APRP funding reports for FY 2017 /2078 have been published and publicized.

ln addition to funding the APRP, Technical, Performancre and Financial audits for FY

2Arc/2A77 and half year FY 2A77/2078 have been conducEd. The Ersrs of reftrence for

;E
l-.------rf
t-- ... .
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audits have bcen revier+'ed to irrclurle value for money atrdi|s ancl staff sensitizecl orr value
for money audits and expressions of interest reccived.

1'he procuremetrt of the ttext series <rI lt,chrric.rl, I)crfrlrnrarrcc antl ljirr.rrrt.ial Atrclits is
ongoing.

Axle Load Control

'fhe establi.shment of axle load linrits is an important aspect in thc managentent of tlrc roat'l
nehvork. The Board is tledicatecl to ensurc'cornpliarrce rvitlr axlc load limiLs.

During tlrt' t'ear uncler revielr', thc' ll<'rard conductecl nrorritt:ring ol'axlt' loac1 corrtrol arrcl
suburitte'cl the reports to [5 Statc Dt:parhrrt,nt ttI Infrustructrrre.

Roads 2000 (I{2000) Stratcgy

The R2000 strategy was developcd basccl on previous laborrr-based progranrrnes such as
the Rural Roads Access Progranrme (RAI(P) in thc rnid 1970's and N,{inor l{oads
I'rogrammc (MRP) of thc'1980 - 1990. The l{oac1s 2000.stratcllv !l.as estalrlislretl in 199.1

w'ith tlre.rinr of inrplententing a ne)rv ap1'rro.rch to rapirlll't'rinll roircls to a maintainable
standarcl ancl pla<:e thcnt rrnclcl'c[[t-'ctivc mairttr.:nancr. rr'ith the optirnutn usLl of local
resourccrs. l'he e{evtlopnrelrt of thr-. *'ssiorral l'a1xrr of 2006 on the L)evelopnrent ancl
\'latragcnrent of thc lltracls SrrLr-Sector for Sr,rstairr;rtrle llcorrornic Crortth s,rll thc
integration of the R2000 progranr.tre in lroth thc lst ancl thc 2rrcl N,lctliurn'l'crm I'l.trr.s as a
kev goverrrment programmes.

The 1st five year I{2000 Strategic irlan (2005-2010) u,as tlevclop'rq.1l in 200-1. J'hr: irrtcrvt:ntiorrs
rrf tlris strategic plarr imprcrvcd7,392 kilontcters of rur,rl roacls t() g,r.rr,'el stantlnrrls .lt (l c()st
of Kshs.5.8 billion, generatcd'1.7 rnilliorr l'r€rstllr clavs of ernplovnrent and trainecl 5,600
latrour baseri contractors. N,{orc t}rarr Kshs. 1.0 billi<ln lr,as injectccl to the rural econonrv
n'ith nritrirnunr 25'16 rlf lr ncf iciarics 1'x'irrg \\'onl{.,n.

The 2rrcl five vear 112000 Stratcgic plan (?013-2017) lru ilt ou lhe successes of the I st strirtegic
plan. The achievements of the 2nci stratcgic plan includec-l irnprovcment of crvc.r 79,175
kilometers clf rural ro.rds to gravel standartls at a cost of or,,er Kshs. 16.58 billiorr; over (r.76

million pcrson clays of emplol,mcnt g,eneratt'cl; rt:st'arclr on .rlternativc surfac'ing methocls;
arrtl crc.ation of opportunitics for curergirrg snrall scalt'cclrrtr,rctors,/cntre-prencurs.

Despitc tltt'lottl5tlvitv oi tlte R1000 pr()llrat't'lnte, the strategt, still l.acts.'t truntlrcr of
cltallengcs revolving artlunr.l tcchnir'al arrri aclnrirristr.rtivr' ['rrocctltrrt's, rveak
ilrrp'rlementation framelverrk, lack ol cornpt'tent clelivr:rv prartners such as srnall arrtl
nredium enterprises, su1'lpliers, artis.rns, contractors arrd skillccl Jrurstrnrrcl in a lclc,rlil.t,arrrl
preferenccl to mach i ne ovcr l abor t r- [.rasetl co nstructit'rrr rrrt,thorls.

It is irgairrst this Lr.rckgror.rrrd tlrat KIll] has engaged a consult.rrrcy Iirnr to develop a l(2000
Policv aituecl at atlclrcssirrg tlrr.sc challt:ngc.s. Ihrt of thr: olrit:ctive.s of this consrrltancy is to
clevekrp l('rn'rs of Rcfr-rrcttcc krr tlrc prep,rraticrrt of tht, 3rcl l(1000 Stratcgit- I'larr wlrich n'ill
covcr the ncxt 5-yt:ar imp'rlcnrcntation Frcriotl of 20 I8 to 2()22.
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Pe rformance Contracti ng

Kenya Roacls lloard sig,ned the FY 2017120L8 performance contract with the Government
<lf Kenya through the lr'tirristry of I'ransport, Infraskucture, Housing, Urban Development
& ['ulrlic Works.

The Kev Pcrformance Indicators outlined in tlre Perforrnance Contract include financial &
stew.rrdship, service delivery, operational and qualitative indicators derived from the
lr'ledium -l'crttr Expenditure Framcwork, Vision 2030 and Sector l'erformance standards.

fluman Capital

At Kcnya Roacis Boartl, rvc believe that hunran capital is a key pillar to the successful
execution of thc Board's Strategic Plan. 'i'he input of members of staff is the most critical
elentent guaranteeing the attainment of targets sct in the Performance Contracts.

l'hc Board's ntettrbers o[ staff have received high quality training both locally and overseas
tlrrouglr art elalrorate tr.rining plan for all staff. 'l'here exists a performance management
svstern that st'ts key performarrce benclrrnarks which when attained result in achievement
of thc lloarrl's goals ancl rcu'.rrd of staff.

ISO Certification

'l'lrt'Iltnrri has been ISO 9001:2008 - Quality Managemerrt System (QMS) certified. T'he
lJoarrl u,as certificd itt Jurte 2010, trnc{ rc<ertified in August 2013 and June 2016
rcspectively.

'l'hc Roard and Staft of KRB endeavor to maintain and continur:usly improve tht'
effectiveness of its quatiry management systcms that rneet the stakeholtlers' expectations
irr accordanc:e rvith IS0 9001 :201 5 requirements.

ljollou'irrg tlrc re visiorr of thc ISO Starrdard from 9001:2008 to 9001:2015, the Board is in the
proccss oi seekirrl3 cc'rtiIication urrder thc new Standard, This process is expected to be
conrpleted in the l.t rluarter of Financial Ycar 2018/2019.

Appreciation

I would like to thank the Boarcl of I)ircctors, lv{anagement and Staff of Kenya Roads Board
for their continuecl support and dedication, without rvhich our ambitious obiectives could
not ltave bcen achievc.c'I. I would also wislr to extcnd our gratifude to the Government of
Ken1,tt, tlre Mini.stry of Trartsport, Infrashucture, Housing and Urban Development & Public
Works, the National Treasury and Road Agencies for their co-operation and support.

Finallr,,l
commitm to

like to thank all taxpayers and stakeholders, and assure them of our strong
cleliver outstanding value to Kcnyans as a wholc.

1sf q 
f 
oru

t} Z. RUWA, OGW
IIXIICUTIVE DIItECTOR

t bhrr.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANC E SJATEM ENT

1. Introduction

'l'he Board of Directors rccognizes the. irnportance'ttf apl)lyipl; thc, Iiglrtst staltlartls ol
corporate Sovcrnance as a ke,v corrtributor to its long tcnlt succcss, long term value,rnl'l
prosperih'.

This tlnable's effective atrtl efficit"nt clccision rnakirrg ancl gives .r sh'uctural aicl for the
Dit'cctors to clischarge their duty tcr promote the success of KItB rvhile taking into account
the intercst of sta keholders,

Effectivt' govcntance is achieved tlrrouglt a combination of strong process ancl structrrrc.s,
underpinnet'l bv the right values .rrrrl culture. I he print:iplcs o[ corporate governance! are
containecl irr the Mr.r,ongozo Code of Corrduct & Iithics.

2. The tsoard

Board Size and Composition

The sizc, composition and apprrinrm()nts oI tlrc lr,'lenrbt,rs ol' tht, i]oarrl arc prr,s('ril'x'(1 in tlrrr

Ken-ya Iloacls Boarcl r\ct, Kcnva Ikracls llcrard cornprisc.s clf thirtet:rr (13) intleperrtlcnt norr-
executives board of directors of rvhiclr eight (8) arc f rom the prrivate sector institutions and
five (5) tttc.rttbers reprcscnting tlre public sr.ctor. I:.rch pr1i1,,11e nrctnlrer serves tor ir

maximum of tw'o terms of three (3) v€ilrs cnch.

'l'he Chairman of the Board is approhrted by the'President irorn among the e'ight ntcnttrcrs
from the private s€ctor. Names of .rll Bo.rrtl rnernlrcrs and clr.rnges thcrcto are pulrlislrctl in
the Kenya Grrzcttc.

l'he public se'ctor rc'presentatives arc thc principal sccretaries or clesign.rted alternatt's trot
below tht: levcl of deputy.' secrctar\'Irorrr tlre rrrirristries responsiblc [or nr.rtters rcl.rting to

roads, financc, local autlrorities, rcgiorr.rl co-operation, tr.tnsport & cotrrtrtuttit:atiotts.

The re.prcstntativcs from the privatt sectorare ap1'roirrtcd lry tht: N{inistcr resl:r.rtrsilrlc l'or

roads fronr amon8 the three pr.rsons nonrinaterl lrv t'ach orli,rrtization spcciticd irr tlrt'l;irst
Scheclule to the Kenya lloatls Boartl Act.

I'he Boartl is lvcll col'nposecl irr tcrnrs <'rl r.rrrgc antl divcrsitv ol skills, knolr'lcclge, a1p anrl

expericnce in r,.rrious sectors lvhich nrilk(,s it effecfivc atrrl l'rrov'ickls .tIr approPriate b;rlance

for the oversight of the Board's manclate. On 11,rrclcr, the lloarti h;rs tlrrct, (3) lvtrmt'rt orrt t>l'

eight (8) members from the private scctor.

'l'he Executive I)ircctor's position is fillcd througlr public,rdvertisemcnt.'i'hc Iixet:utivc
Dircctor is ap'rpsinleli by thc' Boarcl in cr>nstrltation x'ith tht' illinister.

Ihe Ilxecutive I)irr.ctor is an ex-oiiir'ial rrttrnlrer of the l]oartl [rut lras tro votitrg ri11ht at,rrrv
rrrercting ol'the. Iloartl and is tlle sccretarV to thc Boarrl.
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Independence and Separation of Roles & Responsibilitiee

'l-he roles ancl rcsponsibilities of the Chairman of the Board, the Executive Director and
non-e xtlctltive dircctors' renrain distinct and st'paratc rvhich ensures a balance of power of
authority and provides for checks and balances such that no one individual has unfettered
Powers of decision nraking. 'Iheir roles have been documented and are expected to be
irrdepe nderrt and free fronr conflict upon appointment.

l'he Chairman provides overall leadership to the Board without limiting the principles of
collective responsibility for Board's decisions. The Chairman builds an effective board and
sets the board agerrda in consuliation with the Secretary/Executive f)irector and ensures
effcctive comm unication to sta keholders.

The Exerutive Director is responsible to the Board arrd takes the ovcrall responsibility for
the rnanagemcnt of tlrc' Kcnya Roacis Board Fund and takes responsibility foi effective and
cfficient day to day running of the affairs of the Board. The Executive Director recommends
the strategy to the Board and implements it and makes operational decisions, Noting trat
the position also doubles as the secretary to the Board, the Executive Director ensures
appropriate antl tinrt'ly infornration flon's rvithirr the Board, its committees and
nranagcmerrt.

'l'he' nolr-excctttivc dircctt'rrs are indcpendcnt o[ nlanagement, they appoint the Executive
Director ancl establish a framework for the delegation of authority and ensure succession
plattnirrg for the executive director and senior management is in place.'their role is to
aclvise, constructively challenge and monitor the success the management is delivering the
agreed strategl' rvithin the risk appetite and control framervork that is set out by the Board.

Board Responsibilities

The Board's responsibility is to promote the long tcrm success of the Board. The Board
provides lcadership and concenhates its efforts on the strategic and governance issues.'l'hc
Kenya Roads Board Act, the Board Charter and the lvlwongozo Code of Ethics defines the
governance parameters within which the Board exists and operates, the epecific
responsitrilities to be discharged and powers of the Board, its committees and directors
collectively, as rvell as ct:rtain rolcs and responsibilities incumbent upon directors as
individuals.

The Board is chargcd with tlre follon'ing responsibilities:-

a) Defining the purpose r>f the Kerrya Roads Board, that is, its strategic intent and
objectives, and its values which should be clear, concise and achievable;

b) Strahgy fornrulatjon and ensuring there are appropriate policies, systems and struch.rres
to effectively and successfully implement the strategies;

c) Provide leadership within a framework of prudent arrd effective shuctures which enable
risks to lrc ilssessed;

d) Identify the opporhtnities as well as the principle risks in its operating environment
including the preparation of the risk policy plans/risk managemeni policies and
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implementation of appropriate measures to manage such.risks or anticipated impact on
the corporah busineas;

e) Reviewona 
{eeularbasis the adequacy and inEgrity of the internal controls, acquisition

and divestur€8t management information systems including compliance with applicable
law6 and regulations;

f) In sEwardship and in discharging ib obligations, the Board assumes responsibility in
the following arcas:

t Retaining full and effeclioe control ooer KRB, and monitoing management in
implennlting Bomil plans an d s tratc gies;

t En*tring ethical belwtior and compliance with relasant lmts arul regulations, audit and
accountirlg principlcs, and KRB's mon gowrnittg doanments and Code of Ethics; and

' Defning lwels of mnt*ialig, reseruing specif c pnoers to the Bonrd and delegating other
nmtlers with tlu necessanl u,ritten nuthority to nnnagemtnt and inshtufing {fectfue
nrcdrcnisfis tlmt ensure Board respottsibili$ Jbr rurn:r,r.gcnvnt perfornnnce of its furcttons;
antong otlter mandabs and respansihilities ns stilnilnted in tlu Kenyn Rwds Board Act,

rr#tmr ettenl&la by roara uemuers

Kenya Roads Bolrd Act provides that the Board holds meeting at least once every month.
The Board therefore holds regular scheduled meetings throughout the year and
supplementary rneetings are helJas and when necessary. Ii case of non-attenclance clue to
othel4commitmenb, such information was communicated to the chair prior to the tlate of
trc iqpeauted meeting.
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Board Comrnlttoeg and Responsi bi lities

The Board deltgates cerhain functions to well-structured committees but n,ithout
abdicating its ovi/n recPonsibilities. The Board has devetoped a committee structure that
asslsto in the execution of its duties, powers and authorities. Ilach Committee is guided by
a Committee Charter/Terms of Reference, which outlines its responsibilities as mandated
by the Board and is reviewed on a yearlv basis. The Committees are appropriaEly
constitupd drawing membership frorn amongst the board members with appropriate
skiUs an{ experience.

The Chihman df the Board and extemal parties/adyisors are required to attend the
committee meedngp only by invitation.

The committees dre expected to operate transparently and full dixlosure to the Board and
also to conduct themselves within the rules and procedures set out by the board. Matters
rleliberated by the Commit@s are presented to the board by the respective chairman
during the next board meeffng.

The Board Comrhittees are Audit & Risk Management, $inance, Human Resources and
Management and Technical. The responsibilities and attendance of meetings during the
year is as summalized belowr

Finance Committee

The Finance Comftithe assists the board in fulfilling ib oversight reeponsibilities for funds
collecEon and sourcing funds allocation & disbursements, review of budgeis and APRP
and the implementation reports.

The responsibilitids of the committee are as follows:-

(a) Management of KRB Fund (Funds allocation, collections and disbursemenb)
(b) Budgetingland Planning (Review of KRB Operations Budget and the APRP)
(c) Identificatibn and recommending other potential sources of Revenue
(d) Recommertding periodic reviews of the fuel levy
(e) Recommertding appropriate levels of road user charges
(0 Financial Reporting

G) Compliance wi*r Public Finance Management (PF-M) Act and other related
legislation

r8
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(h) Review of funcls utilization and absorption

Audit & Risk Management Committee

'[hc r\uclit anrl ilisk \'lanagcment Cornmittee assists the board in fulfilling ib oversight
responsibilities for tltc work's programming and monitoring as well as the advisory role
tr: thc lvlinister for l(oads. 'l'he Audit and Risk Management committee has autfiority to
cotrtluct or ar.tthorizc irrvcsligaLions into any mattcrs lvithin its scope of responsibility.

The conrrnittee has the follorving rc.sponsibilitics:-

(i) Lnsures e,xternal audit reconrmendations are fully addressed; and
(ii) Ensures that the quality of internal audit is of appropriate standard and that line

management has full regard to internal audit recommendations.

In particular, the Audit and Risk N'tanagerncnt Cornmittee shall be responsible for the
review of the following, are.rs:-

(a) Ii.isk lv'lanagenren[ and Compliance
(b) Internal Auclit
(.) l:xternal Audit

Hunran Resources and Management Committee

'l'he fvlanagerllent Contntittcc oversees strategic planning, staff matters, performance
con trac' ti n g a n c{ genera I rr1iln(l gemet"l t oversi ght.

Specificalll'the comntittee is responsible for the following:-

(a) Sctting the policies and strategic direction of the organizationi
(b) Review the Strategic Plan and the Business Plan for approval by the Board;
(c) lvlonitoring the implementation of the Strategic Plan;
(d) Evaluation of the pcrformance of the organization, Executive Director, staff and
departmcnLs;
(e) Negotiatirrg the annual performance Contract betra'een KRB and the Ministry of Roads;
(f) Revien.ing of the organization structure of KRII;
(g) Reviewing KRB's staff tcrms and conditions of service;
(h) Revierving the various managemcnt policies aimed at enhancing staff performance;

'l'echnical Committee

J'he'l'eclurical cornmittecl o\rersces thc optimal utilization of the fund by Roads Agencies

Spccifically the committee is responsible for thc follorving:-

a) Coordinating the optimal utilization to achieve efficiency and cost effectiveneas in
road works;

b) Monitor and evaluate by means of Technical, financial and performance audib the
delivery of road vvorks;

c) Coordinatc/ Monitor im plementation of road maintenance programmes;
d) Implementation of the Road Sector Investnrent Programme;

l9
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c) Ilcsearch anci Developfilcnt in Rorrcls sub sector;
0 R2000 Strategy;
g) I(oacl lv,tai.te^ance M.r^itgenrcrrt Svstcnr(itlr,'-S); arrr{
h) i\dvising the Cabi^ct sccr*tarv cr. Ilo.rtl rrrainterrancc p.licies.

3. &equ-B_eletrqr'_ql$-e*E_a"sld

'lhe tron-cx-official Board ntembers are praicl taxalrle sitting allon,ance as approvccl lry thc
Minister responsible for Roac{s follorving guidelines frorn the State Corporution, .,\rJvisory
Comrllittee. The Chairman is paicl horroraria at a rate apprrovecl tr1, the Covcrnrnc'rrt.

'I'ranspclrt exPenses arer reimburserl on travcl for Btrarci Lrrrsiness;rt tht-. prrcvailing A;\ r,rtes.
The ntentt>crs are also errlitled to orr[pr.l1is11t arrrl inLratit,nt rntrlical cover artr.l 

'a 
persorral

acciclcnt ('ovcr .ls a pplicablc.

4. Directors tnaucUon

The Boarcl develops induction attrl trainirrg progranrs rlesignctl to introtluct, rrerl ctirectr.rrs
to the operations of thc Bo.rrd and related govern?lnce nratters.

'l'he progt.ttlls tlr('also aimecl at tlccpe.ninll tlre unclerstantlirrg oi the changes in risks. larvs
atrt'l [rttsittess antl proliticalenr,'ironrncnt irr n'[rich the lJoarrl clprcrattls.

5. Bsaqd_Eff-egliy_e495;s and L-tae!_uOtio-n

In clrder to .t-ssess and improve the c,rpacih,, funcliol'ralih, anrl c,ffectiverrcss ot' tlrt. lloarrl
and its conrrnittees, an annual cvaluation is undertaken in,rccortl;rncc n,ith tlre n,iclclv
accepfsd principle.s of corporate g()vcnlancLr.

'l'he seli-ev,rluation rt'vit'w's Lhe c,rpracitt,, iunctionalitv antl t ffectivencss of its perlormarrcc
in thc achievct:rent of its goals artrl lrtrjcctives. lt assr.rsscs thc;>crforrn,rrrt.,., arrtl
indeperldence crf tltc Boartl .tncl cornnrittees jointlv, indiviclual nrenr[rrs of thc []o.rrtl antl
the Executive l)irector.

'l'he l-lxecutive f)irector is assesscri irr his roles as tht: CliO.rncj tlre riccretilt.\,to thc Bo.rrcl.
'l'he Chairman's ability to add taluc, his pcrformance a1;ainst u'hat is exprcctecl ol his rolc.
ancl ftrrrclion, is .tlso .rssessc(i.

'l'hc'result.s ot thc evaltrrttion fornr thc lrasis on rr,hich.'rr--tior],,,rr,(rrk pl.rns [or thc prccetl irrg
):car ate frrrtrtttlateel, assists to iclcntifl' the'training nccr.ls lor c'lirt.cltlrs.rntl it also fttrnrs tlrc
basis of re-appoin tmcnt.

6. 9o-;f!g! of Interest. Code of e-qndug_and_E!"hlSg

The directors ancl onployees of tltc Boarcl have a tirluciarl,tluty to act l'roncstll, ancl in tlre
[)est interest tlf tltc []oard. Busittr'ss tr,lnsactions rvith all partit,s rrrrrst Lre carrit'cl otrt at arnr's
lerrgtlr antl tvitlt inttgritl,. 'l'lre llo.rrcl Pr'ovi(ies effectivrt lcatlt rslrip l-raseti ttn cthical
foulrdatiort attrl cnsurcs all delitrcratitrns, clc.cisions alrrl actitrrrs arr lrascti on thc llo,rrcis'
core va I ues u nderpinrr ing good lloverrrancLl.
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'l'he Board has developed a Code of Conduct and Ethics Manual whose aim is to enhance
relationships and fostering teamwork among board members and staff and to build
respect, confidence and credibility with ib citizeru. The Code provides guidance to ib
members regarding ethical and behavioral considerations as tlrey address their duties and
obligations during their appointment and thcir term in KRB.

The Board has put various measures in place to ensure that there is no conflict of inErest
amongst its dircctors anci staff. The Board has put in place Corruption Prevention and
Code of Corrduct & Ethics Policies that binds both the directors and the employees.

At the beginning of tlre financial year, all directors and employees signed a declaration of
interest form declaring that they will disclose any interest that conflicts or possibly rnay
conflict rvith the interests of the Board. At the commencement of any business- to be
transacted, all direchors f staff are required to declare their interest, if any.

All staff and directors declared their wealth as required to the Public Service Commission.

During the year, the directors and employees demonstraEd their commitrnent to thepublic
service through professionalism, integrity, moral and ethical requirements, conflict of
interest, ancl political neutrality through compliance with relevant larvs as evident from
the legal audit, internalauclit, and externalaudit reports presentetl to the Board.
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lntroduction

The Board rvorks rvith ils staff antl stakehtll<lc'rs to crtric.lr Lruhlic/contrltrnih, lite arrrl
F)articiPate in charitable projects.'l'hc nrain activitics carried out rlrrrirrp, the yc.rr !\,cre as
follows:-

Research and Development

KI{IJ is conrmitted to pronroting rescarch.rntl clcvt:loprnent u'itlr the airn of irnproving road
rvorks tlelivery in the country artcl thus opt'inriz.inB utilizatitrrr oi furrcis..l'o c'l'fi'r'tivcll.
atlvice' the- Cirbirtet Secrctan' tlu thc intpact of ro.rtl clcveloprnent progl;r,,.,,'nLrs thcr(f is net'tl
for such ar{vice to Lrc cclntinuotrslv irrf orrrrr:d [rv resc.rrclr.

As a result, the Boarcl supp()rt roacl lelatc'cl rescarr:h in thc. a;:;rlicatiou o[ entcrgirrg
techncllogics such as coblrlcstonc.s .lrrd lovv vtrlurrrc seals rt,ac{s (l.VS).

A baselirrc survey t>n researclt unclertirken in the road sct:tor rtas ret:t'ntly unclertirkcrr, tlrc
outcomc of rvltich rvas an irr-rlepth arl.llvsis oi the rt'scarchcs rurdcrtaken and arr

identification of rescarclr ga;rs in Ilre lcr,rd suL].scctor.

KIiB in colltrboration with li4aterial 'l'r*'sting & Ilcsearch [)cp'r6r116s'111 (N{'fRD) and .,\irica
Cornnrrrnitt, /\ccess Parhrershipr (AliC.AI') supprlrted the 2,trI lnternati<lrral Corrfert'nce. on
-l'rarrsport,rncl Itoad l{c.sr-.nrc:h (i-fR,\RR) irr Jtrnt'201 8 rvrth tlre ovcrall airn to crrhtrrrcc
coordination of transport relaterl rcst:arclt efforls rvitl'rirr thc' rcgiorr.

Roads 2000 (R2000) Strateg.v

The Roads 2000 stratc.gY is a rnethod of road rlevelopmcnt and rn.lnilgcr-r1(')rtt tltat
ensures r)p[i611111utilization itnd rlcvelopnl(lnt of ltlcallr- ar,ailable resourccs !\rhorr.
technicallt,, econ()nlicalh' fcasiblt. anrl in a sociallv r(1sp()r'rsiv(. rnrlllnor.

KRB coclrdinatcs the R2000 stratcgt' irr thc countrl, to prronxrtc, tlre trse of the locaI
rcsources and labour-basccl nrcth()ds in roacl n'laintenanc(.

fhe stratcgv aims to create short-tc.rnr enrplovurerrt tlrrouglt tlro rchabilitatiort rlf
rural .rccess roacls ancl othcr labour irrte'nsive proiects.'l'hc strategv has been in
place for .rpproxinlateh, tn,o tlccades during u,hiclr it has hacl great imp;r61 in
provicling ;rart-tirnc enrplol'nrcnt opportunitie.s to thc nrarlliualizecl groups such as

r{omen, },outh ancl people livirrg r.r,ith clis.rtrilities. T'hc sl.rate11r. has ;rlso facilitatccl
thr. training of sevcral small to rnedium scalc cr:ntractors on loctrl resour:t,-bast'tl
methods.

Standard Chartered Marathon

KIill stall'arrrl iarnilies participatcd in thr.2() l7 Standarti Clratl.rrctl \.larathorr.'['lrc
N{aratlton is thc flal;shipr project [trr thc Shrnrlarrl Clrartcrt'tl l]arrks' "Si'cirrg is lJelit'r,inli"
cornnrultitl,irttitativc that airns to rarse ltrrtrls lrrr tltc rret'rlt'in thrr t'ornrrrrrnitt,.

'))



KENYA ROADS BOARD FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH II.'NE 2M8

To ensure sustainabilig, the annual Standard Chartered Marathon now f6rmg an
important part of the Board's calendar as the Board 'shares vision' with needy and
disadvantaged persons.

Protecting the Environment

Environmental Conservation is one of the enablers to *re Sodal Piltar in the count/s
economic blue print 'Vision 2000'. Road proiects have the pobntial of damaging trenatulal
resources upon which economies are based. The environment is the resouice bose for
materials used in road construction. [t assimilates road construction waste, hence affucting
the lifespan of roads.

To minimize the negative environmental impact, the Board requires the Road Agmcies to
factor in mitigation measures at the planning stage, during and alter for all
rehabilitation and periodic mainEnance proiecb. Theae meagtneB include soil
erosion tfuough consbucdon of gatrionr, tree planting, covering
pib to provide waEr caEhmert areas for use by local reeidenb.

23
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REPIORT OF TIIE DIBBCTOR,S

The Drectors hAve the pleasure of presenting their report together with the audied
financial statements for the year ended 30th June 2018 which show the gtate of the Board's

PRINCIPAL ACIrIVTTTES

The Board is primarily engaged in management of the Kenya Roads Board Fund together
with other mandates specified in the Kenya Roads Board Act,1999.

RESUTTS

The regutts for thg yearended 30th June 2018 are set out on page ZII tolZ.

The Board of Dinktors who held office during the year is shown on pages 6.

ln accordance with Section 7$) of the Kenya Roads Board Act, 1999 'the Chainrnn and
memfurs ofPu Be,{4 otlur tlun ex-oficial nunhus shall hold ofi.u fur a period of tlwe years from
tlte date ofafunhlentktt shallfu eligible fw re-aypaintment for one furtlur tenr of a pniod not
exceding tfuee ycafs.'The appoinhnent and vacation of office of any member of the Board
shall be iiii,,accordFnce with Section 2 of the Second Schedule to &e Kenya Roads Board
Act,1999. i

i!,
FINANCIIL STCTEMENTS

At the date of this ppori, the Board was not aware of any circumsiances rvhich would have
rcndered the values attributed to the assets in the financial statements misleading,

AUDITORS

KEI\NTA ROAT}S BOARD FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMSNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30rH IUNE 2018

The Auditor Cenetal is responsible for the shtutory audit of the Board's books of account
in accordance wi*iSections 14 and 39 (i) of ChapEr 12 of the l-aws of Kenya, Public Audit
Act,2015.

BY ORDER OFTHE BOARD

ENG. oGw
SECRETARYTOTHE BOART)
NAIROBI

I bte
DA
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STATEMENT OF THE BOARD'S RESPONSIBILTTIES

I'he Kcnya Roads Boarcl Act, 199 requires the Board to prepare financial statements of
each financial ye.rr which give a lrue and fair vier.r' of the state of affairs of the Roads Board
as at thc encl of the financial year and of thc Board's operating results for that year. It also
requires the Board to ensure that the Roads Board keeps proper accounting records which
disclose with reasotraLrle accuracy at any time the financial position of the Board and to
(:nsure that the Financial StatemenEi complv with the enabling Act. "Ihey are also
responsible for safeguarclirrg the asseb of the i{oacls Board and taking reasonable steps for
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

I'he Board at:cepts responsibility for the financial statements which have been prepared
using appropriate' ttccounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent iudgments
and estimates, in confcrrmity with Internalional Public Sector Accounting Standards and
the requirerttents of the Kenya Roads Board Act. The Board is of the opinion that thc
financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Roads Board and
of its financial performance. The Board further accepts responsibility for the maintenancc
of accounting records which may be relied upon in the preparation of the financial
statemenb, as well as designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial stabments that are firse from
ma teria I rnissta temen ts.

'['hc' Board is rcquired to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis unless
it is cletermined that .rftcr the reporting priod, the Board intends to liquitlate or cease it
activities, or that it has no realistic alternative but to do so. Nothing has come to the
attention of the Board to indicab that Kenya Roads Board will not remain a going concem
for at least the rrext hvelve months from the date of this statement.

Approval of thc Financial Statemcnts

l'hc liinancial Statenrents of Kenya Roacls Board Furrd were approved by the oard on 4il'
Scptember 2018 and sigrred on its behalf

,\)

Ms A

DATE: ll q

V
CHA

lB DArE: 
[1

RUWA, OGW

D{ls
CPA CI{ARLESTIROK
DIRECTOR
DArE: l1\I\r(
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REPUBLIC OF KENYAt
Telephone: +254-20 -3 42330
Fax: +254-20-311482

E-Mail: oag@oagkerya.go.ke
Website: www.kenao.go.ke

P.O. Box 30084-00100
NAIROBI

OFFICE OF THB AUDITOR-GENERAL

REPORT OF THE AUDTTOR GENERAL ON KENYA ROADS BOARD FUND FOR

THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kenya Roads Board Fund

set out on pages 28 to 50 which comprise the statement of financial position as at

30 June 2018, and the statement of financial performance, the statement of cash

flows, the statement of changes in net assets and the statement of comparison of
budget and actual amount for the year then ended and a summary of significant

accdunting policies and other explanatory information in accordance with provisions

of Article ZZg of the Constitution of Kenya, and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act,

2O1S.l have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of my

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, the financial position of Kenya

Roads Board Fund as at 30 June 2018, and of its financial performance and its cash

flows for the year then ended, in accordance with lnternational Public Sector

Accounting Stahdards (Accrual Basis) and comply with Kenya Roads Board Act, Cap

408 of Laws of Kenya.

Basis for Opinion

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme

Audit lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of Kenya Roads Board in accordance

with ISSAI 30 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical responsibilities in

accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical requirements

applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe that the

audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my

opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professionaljudgement, were of most

significance in the audit of the financial statements. I have determined that there are

no Key Audit Matters to communicate in my report.

Report of'the Autlitttr-Genentl on thc Finuncial Stutcments of- Ken.'t,tt RoatJs Boartl Fund lbr the .vear endecl

30 Juna 20 I 8

Promoting Accountabilitv in the Public Sector
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,REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN

RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, I confirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to believe
that public resources have not been applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that
I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
assurance about whether the activities, financia! transactions and information
reflected in the financial statements are in compliance, in material respects, with the
authorities that govem them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS
MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE

OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK

Conclusion

As required by Section 7 (1) (a) of the Public Audit Act,2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, I confirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me
to believe that internalcontrols, risk management and governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 1315 and ISSAI 1330. The
standard requires that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether
effective processes and systems of internal control, risk management and
governance were operating effectively, in all materia! respects. I believe that the audit
evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Gharged with Governance

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with !nternational Public Sector Accounting
Standards (Accrua! basis) and for such intemal control as management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Fund's ability to continue sustaining services, disclosing as applicable, matters
related to sustainability of services and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the management either intends to cease operations of the Fund, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Report of the Auditor-General on the Financial Statements of Kenya Roads Board Fund for the year ended
30 June 2018

2
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Management is also responsible for the submission of its financial statements to the

Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit
Act, 2015.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Fund's financial

reporting process.

Auditor General's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error, and to issue an audito/s report that includes my opinion in accordance with

the provisions of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report

in compliance with Article 229(7)of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high

level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with

lSSAls will always detect a material misstatement and weakness when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,

individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the

activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements

are in compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are

applied in an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the

ionstitution and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the

Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the

effectiveness of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and

systems in accordance with the provisions of Section 7 (1) (a) of the Public Audit Act,

2O1S and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.
My consideration of the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in

thb internal control that might be material weaknesses under the ISSAls. A material

weakness is a condition in which the design oroperation of one or more of the internal

control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that
misstatements caused by error or fraud in amounts that would be material in relation

to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a
timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned

functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation

of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become

inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with

the policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

Report of-the Auditor-General on the Firutncial Stcttements of Kenyu

J
30 June 2018

Roods Bourd Fund /br the year ended



ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the management's use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the ability to continue as a going concern or to sustain its services. lf I

conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in the
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going concern
or to sustain its services.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
and business activities of the Fund to express an opinion on the financial
statements.

ta

a

a

a

. Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with the management regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that are identified during the audit.

I also provide management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

FCPA Edward R. O. Ouko, CBS
AUDITOR.GENERAL

Nairobi

03 May 2019

Report ol tha Autlitor-Genarul on the FinunL'iol Stutcmcnts of Kcn-vu Roud.s Bourd Furul lbr tha veur enclatl
30 Juna 20llJ
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KENYA ROADS BOARD FUND
FINANCIAI, STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH IUNE 2018

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAT PERFORMANCE
FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED 30TH IUNE 2m8

Surplus,Avallable for Dlafidbution

The nohs on Pages 33 to 49 fonn an integral part of these financial statemenb.

5

!

20n,7lLE 20/;6117

Note KShs'000 KShs'Ofi)

I 73,7M,932 69,173,799

Disbursements 9 (63,473,6001 (60,469,600)

10,27L232 8,545,188

no
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KENYA ROADS BOARD FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH IUNE 2018

0

s

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30rH IUNE 2018

The notes on Pages 33 to 49 form an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements on Pages 28 to 49 were approved and authorized by the Board of
Directors on its behalf by,

1

_xfu1lwt*
RUWA, OGW
DIRECTOR

oafu d

t

rtlq r(
CPA RASHID
GENERAL MANAGER FINANCE

Ms. RITA KAVASHE
CHAIRPERSON

MBS (ICPAK No.4801) DATE

l\

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash uivalents

20tut8 20r6lL7
Note KShs'000 KShs'000

10 37,324,294 40,814,525
TOTAL ASSETS 97,324,294 40,8L4,525

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
LL 1,893,059 21,644,533

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,883,059 2L,ilL,533

TOTAL NET ASSETS 29A41.,224 79,L59,992

NET ASSETS

Net Assets Available for Distribution L2 29 L

TOTAL NET ASSETS

DATE

aotK



KENYA ROAp6 BOARD FUND
FINANCI.AL $TATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OT}I IUNE 2018

STATEMENT pr CHANGES rN NET ASSETS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 3OrH IUNE 2mS

Net at l..t
frio

t2

Note KghB'000 KShs'000

73,7U,832 59,113299
e?&r-?l.i __?j,740&?

9

t2

The nohs on pafies 33 to 49 form an integral part of these financial statements.

30
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KENYA ROADS BOARD FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH ILJNE 2018

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30n It NE 2m8

-T-

CASH FLOWS FROM ACTIVTNES

Net cash flows from
Disbursemenb of
Net cagh

Net (D€creas€)flncrease ln C-ash and Caeh pA90.,2$l ?,,l,s.,fil7',,

i.--,.--,
i MOVEMENT IN CASH AND CASH

and cash uivalents

At the end of the 10

The notes on pages 33 to 49 forur an integral part of tlrcse financial statemmts.

7
1
27

13 $A,*0;24&l '(fvt-Wn
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KENYA ROADS BOARD FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH JUNE 2018

STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH JLINE 2018

Budget Notes:

The variance in receipts of Kshs 10.27 billion (16%) is attributed to improved performance
of 99 Kenyan economy, following the slump that was witnessed n)OV due to drought
and the prolonged electioneering period.

\.

BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE VARIANCE
20t7lt& 2077118

KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 o/o

Receipts

Road Maintenance Levy 63,473,600 73,744,832 1.0,271,232 16%

Total Receipts 63A73,600 73,744,932 L0,277,232 t6%

Disbursements (63A73,6001 (63A73,6001

Net Assets 70,271,232 7027L,232
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J

NOTES TO THE STATEMENTS

1.0 GENERALINFORMATION

Kenya Roads Board (KRB) is a state body corporate established under Chapter 408 of the
Laws of Kenya'Kenya Roads Board Act'which came into effect under Legal Notice No. 7

of 1999. The Board is domiciled and operates within the Republic of Kenya.

As stipulated in the Kenya Roads Board Act,1999 "The object and purpose for which the Board
is established is to oaersee the road network in Kenya and coordinate the maintenlnce, rehabilitation
and deaelopment funded by the fund and to adaise tlu Minister responsible for matters pertaining
to roads on all matters related tlureto."

2.0 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Statement of Compliance

The financial statements for the year ended 3gttt June 201.8 have been prepared in
accordance with and comply with International Public Sector Accounting Standards
(IIISAS) as issued by International Public Sector Accounting Standards Board (IPSASB),
the Public Finance Management Act, 2012, Public Audit Act, 2015 and Kenya Roads
Board Act.

For the Public Finance Management Act, 2012, Public Audit Act, 2015 and Kenya Roads
Board Act reporting purposes, in these financial statements the "balance sheet"/
"statement of assets and liabilities" is represented by and is equivalent to the statement
of "financial position" and the "profit and loss accoun('f "statement of income and
expenditure" is presented in the statement of "financial performance".

(b) Basis of Preparution

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
unless otherwise stated. The financial statements are presented in the functional
currency, Kenya Shillings (Kshs.), and all values are rounded to the nearest thousands
(Kshs. '000) except when otherwise indicated.

The cash flow statement is prepared using theinc{irectmethod. The financial statements
are prepared on accrual basis.

The financial statements are presented in Kenya shillings, which is the functional and
reporting currency of the entity.



KEI..IYA ROADS BOARD FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH JUNE 201ti

NOTE!} TO TIIE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3.0 ADOMION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

(i) Relevanl new atandarde and amendmenta to published etandards effectlve for the
year ended it0|une 2OlE

IPSAS First time
adoption pf Accrual
Baais IPSAS

IIISAS &lr Separate
FinanciaI

Stabments

IPSAS Effective for annual periods beginning on or January l,Ztln
ConsoUdaH In January 2015, the IPSASB published II5AS 35, Consolidated

Financial StaEmenb. TPSAS 35 establishes principles for the
preparation and disclosure of consolidated financial staEments
rvhen an entity conhols one or more entities. It requires an entity
that controls one or more other entities to a&sess control over thce
entities based on the following:

- Its po$/er over the other entity
- Its exposure or rights to variable benefits from involvement

n,ith the other entity
- lts ability to control the nature, timing and amount of

Financial $taemenb

St ndarC Impact

ln January 2015, the IPSASB published II€AS 33, First-rime
Adoption of Accrual Basis IPSAS6. TPSAS 33 grants transitional
exemptions to entities adoptng accrual basis lr€A*ss for the first
time, providing a major tool to help entities along their journey to
implement I[€AS€. It allows first-time adopters thre,t, years to
recognize specified a*eets and liabilities. 'lhie provision allows
sufficient time to develop reliable models for recognizing and
measuring assets and liabilities during the transition period.

The entity adopted IP.sAs in the year ended 30 lune 2012 and therelore
yrooisions of frst tinrc adoption o.f accrunl lmsrs does not apply to tlrc
entihl.

(Effective for annual periods beginning on orJanuary t,Wtn

annual periode beginning on or lanuary l,ZUtTl
In January 2015, the II€ASB published II€AS 34, Separare Financial
Stahmene. IPSAS 34 preecribes the accounting and disclosure
requircments for investnents in connolled enti6es, ioint ventures
and associates when an entity prepares separate financial
statemenb.

The enlihl does not hnoe any sthsidinrias, joittt venhras or irrursfirnrnls
and llerelore tlu stnndnrd dxs ntrt npplv.

(Effective for

benefits from the other entity

34
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FtNANCIAL STATEIVIENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30rrr JUNE 2018

Standard lmpact

Once control is assessed the con trol Iing enti$ is suPPosed to

prep<rre consolir{atecl financial statemcnts unless it meets all the

criteria ttndcr section 5 of IISAS 35.

'l'1rc arility tlttas not ltnuc nnll sttbsitlinries, joirtt oenfures or inoeshuertts

utttl llutrL:.|lra tlw slatul;r,d lus rutt npphl'

IPSAS 36:

lnveshnents in
I Associirtes trnci Joint

Ventures

IPSAS 37:loirtt (Effective for annual periods beginni ng on or lanuary"t',201n

ArranlletnenLs In Jattutrry 2015, the LIISASII published IISAS 37, Joint

Arrangements. IfSAS 37 establislres principles for financial

reporting bY entities that have an interest in arrangements that are

controlled jointlY'

'[-1rc entittl dot:s not luruc ntr interest in n ittint nrrangement ond tlera.f'orc

tht stnnlnnl f0t:5 1101 111t1tlY.

Effective for annuai periods beginning on or |anuary 1' 2g1n

I

:

(Effective for annual Periods begin

In Januarl, 2015, thc llSAsB published IrSAS 36, Inveshnents in

Asscriates ancl Joint Ventures. The standard prescribes for the

accounting of associates and joint ventures and set out

requirements for the application of the equity method whm

accounting for investntents in associates and joint venfures. 'l'he

standarr.l sh.rll Lre .rprpliecl by all cntities u'ith significant influenctr

ovcr, or joint control of, an investee rvhere t-[re inveshnent lads to

the holcling tlf a quantiiiable ownership intercst'

'l'lc et*ity doe s not hnue mry inaestnrcnts in nssociates or ioint acnfines

nnrl tlrcrefore the stnndard does not apply.

In Janu.try 2015, the IIISASIJ published IISAS 38, Disclosure of

Interests in Other Entities. IISAS 38 requires an entity to disclose

information that enables users of its financial statemenb to

evaluate tlre traturc' of and risks associated with' ib interests in

controllcd entities, itlint arrangements and associates' ancl

structured entities tftat are not consolidated; and theeffects of those

interests on its financial p'rosition, financial performance and cash

flows.

"llrc triit doas not lnatt an irrtetests in olhcr entitiw and there.fore the

standnrd does nrtt rt1tPlt1.

ning on or JanuarY 't',2017)

IPSAS 38:

Disclosure of

lnterests in Other

Ilntities
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NOTES TO THE FTNANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(ii) New and amended standards and intc.rprctations in issue but not yet effective'in
the year ended 30 June 2018

Standard Effective date and impact:

IPSAS 39: Employee
Benef its

IPSAS 40: I'ublic
Sect<lr Cornbinations

Applicable: I't f anuary 2018
'['lrr, objet'tive to issrrtr ll5AS.1!/ rt'as to crc.ate- c(rllvcrgellce to
changcs irr IAS 1c) lrnt1:lo1,t'c lrerrt:tits. I'hc IISAStJ ncr.cled to

crtatt' c()nvergqncc rri II5r\S 25 to the .rrrrentlrnt'nt.s tlorrc trr 1.,\c

19. 'l'he nrain o[rjcclir,e is to ct'tsure accurate intorrnation rclating
to pensit'rn liabilities arising frorn thc clcfincr.l burclit .sclrernt, b1,

cloing arvar, *,ith the cttrridor (r[)pr()a('h.

Applicable: 1'r January 2019:

I ltc stanr'larcl covt:rs 1:ublit' st'r'tor r'onr[rinatiorts .rrising frorrr

.4,

crclrangc. trarrsactions in u'hich r:.rsc tlrcr' .rrl. trc.rtctl sinrilttrlv
vr,itlr II"ltS j(applicablc to .rcrluisitiorrs i,nl1') Ilusirrcss

corn[rinations anc.l combinatiorrs arising frolrr rron-t'rr:lrangt,

tratrs.rctiorts rr,hich are c()vere(l pure'lv urrclcr I'u[rlic Sector
combinations as amalganrtr tions.

(iii) Early adoption of standards

I'lrc t:rrtitv clicl nrlt earl.l,- arloPt any nc\l'or arnenrletl starrcl.rrcls in vcar 2() l7,i lL) ll'i.

4.0 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principle accountinB policics.rdoptecl in the,PrcPilraliorr ol'thcst, lin,rnt:i.rl
statements are set out bclorr'. lhcsc policics lrave [x't,rr ct>nsistentlr,.rpplied to all

-vea rs prescn tt,d, u nless ollrc rrv isc s ta ter'|.

(a) Presentation of Financisl Statenwnts

Tlte financial statemt:nts comprisc oI statenrent oI firrancial pcrformancc,
state'trtetrt ttI financial position, statcrrlcr)t trI clrtrrrl;t's in net assctsT'ccluitr, .rrrr.l tlre
statenrent of cash flou,s antl the rrotcs tcl the financi.rl staternerrts.

l'ltt' IJoarcl t:la.ssifies its cxpcncliturc [r1, thc rrature of ex1>ense nrct]rtrdolog],.

'l'he disclosure on risks arc prr.sentcd in thc [inancial risk nranal;e,nrent obitchvcs
.rnd policies contained irr notc 5.

'l hc statcmcnt of cash ilorr's sltorr's the clranllr's irr cash arrrl cash ctltrrvalt:rrLs
arisirrg dr.rring the pr1'1ie1l irottt o1.q1,11ipg, itrycstirrli alrl Ii1apgilg at tivitics.

Starting 1il Ju11,2010, Kcrrva l{oads l}oarti atloptt,tl thc II"Sr\S.l on Prc.xrntation of
Ilinancial StatemcnLs. llr prcvious vL.ilrs tho linancialstat(,n1ents lr.crc preFr.rrcel i1
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FINANCIAL STATEN,IENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TI' JUNE 2018

NOTES TOTHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

accordance rvith the International Finarrcial Reporting Standarcls (lFRSs). The
chirnge rvas trecessitatecl by the reporting standards on public entities which are
r.rot Government Business Ilnfities (Gllli) as defined and required by IISAS l-
'I'rtstttttttion o.f Fimncinl Stntunents' which states that the scopre of application is
for'nll ythlit' st<:tttr t:nfihr.s otfur tlutrr Gtruenmrcilt Blrsilles^s Enterpises' ,

(b) Burlget lnlonraliotr

Intcrnation.rl Putrlic sector Re porting stantlards allow for non-disclosure where:
(a) an e ntitv is not rcqrrircd to disclose iLs buclget information publicly; and

(b) thr: t:ntitv has clectcd not to prcsent its approved budgct publicly.

It is observt:cl that the Approved KRB Funcl Butlget amounls for the year havt:
not bcen t:xcr't:tl.

(c) Frrttctiotml Cunetcies

(i) Functional and Presentation Currency

The financitrl statements are presented in the functional currency, Kenya
shillings (Kshs.), r,"hich is the Board's presentational currencv. The financial
infclrnration is roundeci to the nearest thousarrcls (Kshs.'000) except u'hcn
otherw'ise inclicated

(ii) Transactions and Balances

a) Iranslation of Forcign Currencies

'I'ransactions in foreigrr currerrcies during the year are converted into the
functional currcncv trsing the prevailing exchange rates ruting at the dates
of thc transactions..A,sseLs ancl liabilities denominatetl in foreigrr
currencies have been translated at the mean rates of exchange ruling at
the enr'l o[ the reprorhng period.

'l'he forc'iglr currency exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactiorrs and from the hanslation at year end
cxclrange rates of monetarv assets and liabilities denominatecl in foreign
currcnciL's are recognizcd tluorrgh the statement of financial performance
in thc vcar in rvhich thc1,arise.

b) Translation of Foreign Operations

The Bo.rrd r1<xs not havet any fort,ign opn:rations.
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(A Reoenue Rccognl?ion

(i) Reoe*uc ltom non-exchange trunsactions

Leaies air,d Fees

The entify recognizes revenues from levies and fees when the event occurs arrd the
asset recognition criteria are met. 1'o the extent that there is a relatecl condition
attachedlthat would give rise to a liability to repay the amount, deferred inconre is
recognized instead of revenue. Other non-exchange revenues are recognize<l when
it is probable that the future economic benefits or service poEntia.l asstxiated with
the asset will flow to the entity and the fair value of the asset can be measured
reliably.

Transfetr ftom othu gooentnrcnt entities
Revenues from non-exchange transactions with other government entities are
measured at fair value and recognized on obtaining control of the asset (cash,

goods, *rvices and property) if the transfer is free from conditions and it is

probable that the economic benefits or service potential relaEd to the asset will flow
to the entity and can be measured reliably.

Revenue is generally recognized in the Sbatement of [jinancial Performance on
accrual basis.

(ii) Rmenue ftom exchange ttnnsactions

Intercst lncome
InEreet lncome is accrued using the effective yield method. The effective yield
discounb estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset's net carrying amount. The method applies this yield to the
principal outstandfurg to determine interest income each period.

InErest Srcome ftorn all inErest bearing financial instruments is recognized in the
Statemedt of Financial Performance on accrual basis using the effective interest
method.

(e) Cash aril Cash Equioalmts

For purposes of the cash flon,statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise of
cash alrd cash balances held at the bank with less than three months maturity
from $e staEment of financial position date. These include notes and coins on
hand afrd deposits held at call with banks.

(fl Receiohblcs

Receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
paymehb that are not qurrtecl in an active market. They arise when the Board
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providcs monc\f or services dircctly to ,r cieLrtor with no intention of trading the
rc'ccivablc.

I(cceivaLrles arc atttoutlLs clue from the Kenya Roads Boarcl Fulcl lvhich are
accruecl irt tltt't;rclittarv course of trusiness and there is no intention of trading the
receivable.

I{t-'ceivables artt ret:ogniz.ed irritially at the fair value (transaction price/ carryilg
valtlc'less.tttv tliscounLs).'Ihey are srrbsecluently measrrred at inrortized ioss
tr-sittg tltr-'cll'LactivLr itttcrcst mcthocl le'ss provision for impairment,

A provisiott for intpairmelrt of receivables is nrade when there is objective
cviticttcc t.hat Llttt lloard rvill rttrt [r:.rblt'to collect all amounts clue accclrciing to
the orig,irral terrrrs oI receiva[rles.

'l-lre carryilrg value less discounLs and any impairment provision of impairment
is assutnetl to approxintate their fair values. For financial instrumenb such as
short tcrttt receivables, ntr t{isclosure of fair value is requirecl rvhcn the carrying
.lnrount is a rerrsorrable approximation oi fair value.

Receivables arc clirssificd as current .rsscts if paymcnt is due rvithin one vear or
less (or in the rrorrrral operirting, c-\,clc ()l br.rsinr.ss, if longcr). lt not, tliev are
presen ted as l'ron-(:urren t asscls.

(g) Payables

I).rvirblcs inclucle' any oLrligations to pa1, for goods or services that have been
acquircd in thc' ordinary courscr of busincss from suppliers and may also inclucle
pavulctrts ilr rcslrcct social lrcrrcfits rvlrere fornral agreements for spccific amounb
cx is t.

I'ayables arc rccclgnizecl initiallv at firir value and subsequently measured at
arrtortizttcl. cost ttsing the effective interest method. The historical cost carrying
amount of pa-yables subject to the normal credit terms usually approximahs faii
va I ue.

Pavables are classified as currelrt liabilitic.s if paymcnt is cluc rvithin one year or
less (or in thc normal olxr.lting cvck, of trusincss if longer). If not. thev arc
prresentec'l as lton-currcrrt IiaLriIi tics.

(lr) Itnpainrrcnt of Non-/inancial Assets

At each reporting period end, basetl on internal and external sources, the Board
reviervs tht'carrf ing anrortnts of iLs tangible arrd intangilrle assets to {eternrine
whctlr_cr thcrt'is an-y indicatitln that thosc assels havcluffcrccl an impairnrelt
loss. If att\,' sttch ind ication exisLs, the rt,ct'rvcrat:le arrrount of the asset is estim.rtecl
irt orrler ttt tictcnrrinc tht e-xtcnt oi thc inrpairrrrcnt loss.
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Whcre it is not possilrlc to cstinrate thc recoverable anrount oi an irrdiviclual asst:t,
thc Iloard estinr,ttcs tht: rccovt r.tlrlc v,rlutt of tlrc' .rsset.

An}, inrpairment losses are recolltiz.r'cl .ls an e\[)ensr! in the StatCrrrerrt of I:inancial
Performance whenevcr thc carrl,ing irmount oi arr asset trct.erls its rccovcr.tblc.
.ttnount. Where an intpairmetrt loss sulrseguentlv reverse$, tlrt' earrt.irr1,, artolrnt
of the asset is increascd to the revisecl c'stinrate of its rcccrverable amount. r\
reversal of impairment loss is lirnited to the assets carrying amount that w'ould
have been deternritrecl hircl no irrtl>airnrent lo.ss lxrerr rccogniz.crl in prior ycclrs. A
rcvcrsal of an irnl'ral1p1e1t1 loss is credited to tlre Statemcnt of ljinancial
[)e,rf orntance irt the ]/ear re!'ersal.s are rec:ognizecl.

(i) Prooisions

Provisions are recognizc'd rvlretr the Board has a preserrt rlbligatiorr (lcgal or
constructive) a.s a result of a past event, it is probabk, that the lloarcl n,ill lrc
rcquired to settle the obligatiort, and .r reliatrlt-. estimate can be maclc of tht'
irrrrount of oblig.r tion.

-l-he amotttrt recttl3ttizcti.rs a provision is thc [x'st cstirnatc of tlrc consi!ir'rilti()n
requirecl to settle the present obligatiorr at thc rr-:frorting pcrioci e.ncl, takinll inttr
account tlre risks ancJ trnt:ertainties surruundinli thc obligatiorr.

$) Guarantees, Acceptances arul l,ettns of Cre.dit

Guarantee's artt accounted frlr as off statemcnt of iirrancial grositiolr trarrsar:tions
artd disclosed as c-'ontingcnt IiaLrilrtics.

(k) Subseqaent Eaents

'l'here have been no sul'rserlucnt events that u,oulcl lra ve an intF)act orr thc iirranci,rl
statcrnents for the vear enclecl 30th June 2018.

(l) Contparatioes

Ilxcept otherw'ixr rttlrrircd, all arllounts arrl reptlrtecl or tlisclrrsctl
r:omparative informatiorr. Whcrc ncccssilrv, cornl:ar.rtivtt fiy,urt's havc
acljusted to conform to chaugcs iu prg5gsltitlion irr tlre crtrrent v(',1r.

rtith
['r,-'ct't

5.0 SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINITY - (CRTTICAI- ACCOUNTING IISTIMATES,,UDGEMENTS
AND ASSUMT'TIONS)

In thc proces.s ol applying the lJoarrl's accounhng Policics, the directors lravt, rnatlt,
cstinratcs and assunrp'rtions Lhat.rlic.ct tl're reported an"l()unts oi assc.Ls anti liabilitie..;
anrl clisclosure of contingcrrl..rsscts.tncl lialrilities as;rt thc'rlatc ol'thc fin.rrrcial
statcnre'nts, and the reportccl arnourtts of rcvcnues.rncl exprenses dtrrirrg thc rcpr<lrting,
period. Estimates and jr.rrlgr.trcllts artr continually cvatu.rtcd antl are Lrasecl on
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historical experie:nce and other factors, including expectations of future events that
are belicved to be reasonable under the circumstances. Although these estimates are
trased on thc directors' knowledge of current cvents and actions, actual results rnay
differ from these estirnates.

'fhe estirnatcs arrtl urrderlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Revisions to accounting estimates arc recognized in the period in which the estimate
is reviseel if the rcvisir:n affects only that pcriod or in the periocl of thc revision and
future periods if the rcvision affecls both currcnt ancl future periods.

The kev areas oi iurlgments and sources of uncertainty in estimation are as set out
belon':

(a) Critical lurlgnrcnts in applying the Board's accoutttittg policies

ln the pr(x'ess of applying the Iloard's accounting policies, judgments have been
rnarle in determining;-
- \\rhethcr the asscts arc irnpaired;
- The classific.rtion of financial assets;

- The going concern,

(b) Critical Accoutrtittg Estimates awl Asswnptions

(i) Contingent Liabilities

As disclose.d in these financial staternents, the tsoard is exposed to various
corrtingent liabilities in the normal course of business.

The Dircctors cvaluate the status of thcsc (fxposures on a regtrlar lrasis to asscss

the probabiliryr of thc Board incurri:rg related liabilities. I-Iowever, provisions
are onlv mrrdc in thc financial statements where, based on the directors'
evaluation, .r present obligation has [reerr established.

(ii) Prottision for Doubtful Debts

-Ihe organization reviews its receivables portfolio to assess the likelihood of
irnpairment. I'rovision for inrpairmcnt of receivables is establi.shed when there
is objective evidence that the Boarc-l rvill not be able to collect all amounb due.
Where neccssary, an estimation of the amounts irrecoverable is made in that
ycar. l)rovision for impairment shall bc recognized upon approval by the Board
of Dire'ctors,

Giil Other Proaisiorrs

Other provisions are recognizerl w'herr the Board has legal rlr constructive
obligation as a result of past ('r,ents, for rvhich it is probable that an oudlow of
cconomic berrefits will be'rctluired to scttle the obligation, and a reliable
cstimartc can lrc nrac]e of the anrount of thc obligation.
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(izt) (11rrolrnent Lo ssc s

At each reptlrting prcriod t'ncl, tlte lJoarcl rc,"'icrvs the. c.rrrvirrll arrrtlunt.s of its
tangiblc arrd irrttrngitrle asst'ts to tleterminc *'ht,tlrt.r there is anv inclication that
tltt'lst:.t.ssets h.tVe sttffe rc'tl arr inrpairnrcrrt lrlss. Ii.rlrv such inrliiation cxists, t6e
rc'coverable amourrt of the.rsset is estintaterl in trrrlcr to dr:tcrnrilrc tlrt: r,rtcnt ol
thc'impairment loss.

lVhere it is rrot possilrlc to estinratc tlrc'recovcr',rblc am<runt of .rrr rrrtlrvrilu.rl
asset, tlre Iloarcl estirnatcs the recovtr,rble. valr.rc o[ the asstlt. r\rr1,inr1-r.111p1g111
losses arn rccognized as an exLlLlnsc irnlncdiatt,ll,. \{here arr im}rairrrrt,nt loss
sr'rbsequentlY reverstls, thc carrving anrt'lunt of thc'asstt is rncre.tsecl to tht:
re',,isecl estimatc ol'its recovc.r;rLrle anrotrrrt. .,\ re,,,ersal of ;rn inrpairrrrelrt loss is
rr.cognized as income irn mctiiatelr,.

6.0 SEGMENT REPORTINC

'l'hc' Board does not ha','c arrY lrranchcs/rc.p()rting sc1,,rrrt'nts. r\ll ttrt,oPt,ratitrns oi tlrc
[Joard dre rn<lnagecl frorn the registcrcr] ofl it.c. l'ht' ,.:orc [rusir.rcss ol tlrt,Kcrrva Ifuads
Btlartl continues to lrc n1;111;lgenrcnt ol tlrc Kt,nt.,r Roar.ls Bcrarel Ilurrrl toge,ilrt,r rvitlr
otlrer nrarrdatcs as stipulnle.{ irr the Kcnv.r R.arrs llo.rrcl i\ct.
l'here is no distinguislrr:cl corlrponent of the Boarcl that is cng.rgccl in pro,u,irl i611 arr
individual scrvice that is strbject to risks arrcl returns that arc r,iifiir.,,.,t f rtun tht, riia irr
martclatcs of the llttartl.

7.0 RNANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

'rhe lloarcl has irtitiatcd.rnd f.rcilitatcrl the l)rocess t.h;rt rvill scc thtr enhapcerrrelrt 9trisk management' 'l'l're Btlartl ltas an ilrtegriltcd risk nr.rnallerrrcrrt
framer'r'ork/stratergv.'l'lrc Boarcl's approach to risk,rio,rng",r*,rt is lrascc.l il1 rlsk
governance structures, risk ntanagenrcnt prolir:ics, risk identificirtion. n.lc,lsrlrcnr(:nt,
tnollitorirtg ancl reporting, I'he risk matragcrrrcrrt polrcies and s\,str1nls ilrc rcvrt--tt.r-,tl
rc'gularly to ensure tl'ret'arc in trrndcrn x,ith thi'rrrir:ro arrci,,,,,ar.,.rrrrirtlrrrrrt,rrt,
regulatory guicle'lines, itrr'lrtstrt'lrractice, rnarkt,t ccrnilitions as rr.ell as tlrt s(rrvl(.(.s
offr,recl.

'-l'hc Board recognizes thc critical rolc thr, risk man,rgt.rnerrt n,ill ctlnhnuc tc-r l.,l;ry irrits cndeavor to carry out its businc,ss irr a ri_l,narnic crl,irclrrment..l-hc llo.rrtl is
cornnlitted to c'nsure that corporirh-'g(l\'cnr.lncc anrl risli managerlrent.rre. rlceplt,
entrcnchecl in the Board's sl.rategY arrc'l culturt'. .,\n ela['rorate' risk ,r,n,.rn11.,,,.,,,r.,t
.stratcgy' that n,ill providt'direction en rnattt,rs of Policv.rncl g,,i.i,, the
i m plttnr en ta tion ;r nd corr tro I ha s bccrr rlt,vt,l o1.rt,rl.

I'his risk nlanagenlLr.t tr.lrrrcr'.r'k c.rprt111g1; tlrt, ioilorl,irrg anlor.llr, otlrer thirrgs:-

. 'l'he Boarcl's risk appetite ancl paramcters;

. -I'he 
Board's risk matrix that highlights tlre rati.g, ,i risks;

t 'flre structure .f nr.r..rgi.1i risks a'tl acc.urrtalriliti.s
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o 'I'he processes, procedures and reprorts that manage risks;
r 'l'lre nritigating factors, prcvcnlion, contingency plans anc{ controls.

'l'he []oard's core bttsiness involves major cngagements with financial transactions
.rtrc'l processes which pose certain risk. Three types of risks are reported as part of
the risk profile namely operarional, strategic and business continuity risks.

a) OPerational risks are events, hazards, variances or opportunities which could
influence thc achievement of the Board's compliance and operaUonal objectives.

b) Strategic risk is a significant unexpected or unpretiictable change or outcorne
beyond rvltat rvas factored into the organization's stratcgy ancl liusiness moc{el
which could have an impact on the entitv's performance.

c) Busittess contintrity risks are those events,hazards, variances and opportunities
rvhich could influence the continuity of the entity.

Ortt of tlre kev risks the Boarcl has identified in both the operational and strategic
.ir€rrS is tlte sustaitrabilitv of the Road Maintenance Levy in line with the Constitution.
Fittarrcial risk as tlclirrccl in IISAS 15 ancl the rnanagenrent thereof, form part of this
risk arca.

'l'lre Members of thc Board have the overall responsibility for the establishment and
oversight of thc lloard's risk management framework. The Board has delegated its
risk tnatragement to the'Audit and Risk Committee'. One of the responsibilities of
this comnrittee is to review risk management strategies in order to ensure business
continuity and survival. Most of the financial risks arising from financiat transactions
antl processes are managed by the'Finance arrd Planning Committee' of the Board.

The Board's cxPostlrc to risks, its objectives, policies and processes for managing the
risk and the rnethods used to measure it have been consistently appliecl in the years
presented, unless otherwise stated. The Board aims therefore to achievl an
appropriatc balancc between the risk and return and minimize potential adverse
cfl'ecls on its financial prerformance.

'l'lrc financial rnanagernent objc.ctives anci policies are as otrtlinec.l trelow,;-

a) Liquidity tlisk

I-iquictitv risk is thc risk that the Board will not have sufficient financial resources
to nreet its obligations when they fall duc or will have to do so at excessive cosb.'l'his risk can arise from mismatches in the timing of cash flows from revenue and
capital/ operational outflows, asseb and liabilities according to their maturity
profiles and can occur where cash flow streams have been cliscontinued, etc.
Funding risk ariscs wlren the necessary liquiditv to fund illiquicl assct positions
cannot be met at cxpected terms and rvhcn recluired.

I'hc objective of the liquidiry and funding management is to ensure that all
foreseeable operational, capital and loan commitrrent expenditure can be met
under both normal and stressed conditions and the mismatch is conbolled in line
n,ith allon'ablc risk levels.
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The Board has adoptsd an overall balance sheet approach which consolidates all
sourceo alrd uses of liquidity, while aiming to maintain a balance between liquidih,
cash floWs and interest raE considerations. The Board's liquidity and funding
management process incl udes:-

o Projecting cash flows and considering the cash required and optimizing the
short Erm requirements as well as the long term fundinp

o Maintaining balance sheet liquidity ratios,
o Ma{rtaining/ soliciting a diverse range of funding sources with adequate

back up facilities,
. Marlagrng the concenbation and profile of debt maturities, where applicable,
r Maintaining tiquidity and funding contingencv plans.

The tablelshows the undiscounbd cash flows on the Board's financial assets and
liabilities on the earliest possible contractual/maturity daE, The liquidity ratio in
W 2077/78 is 16.4 {FY 2016/17:1.9)

i Note
KSho'000 KShs'000.

40,814,525Cash & uivalents 8 37,324,2U
Total Ass€ts 31324,2U

9 1,993,059

*9At1g

21,,6M,533
Total Liabilities

lp

The Board has an established corporaE governance sfucture and process of
managing risks regarding guarantees and contingent liabilities. All guarantees
issued are approved by the Members of the Board and are administratively
managed by fte finance departarent.

The primahy sources of revenue for the Board are receipb from the Kenya Roads
Board Fund, mainly receipts from fuel levy fund.'Ihc B,oard is pursrring, aciditional
sources of revenue for which approval has been sought from Ministries of Finance
and Roads.

b) Market Risk

Market rigk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of financial
instrumenS will fluctuate because of changee in foreign exchange rates, prices and
inErest ra&s. The obje',ctive of market risk management policy is to piotect and
enhance the Statements of Financial Position and performance by managing and
controlling market risk exposures within acceptablc paramebers, and to optimize
the funding of business operations and faciUtate capital expansion. The Board is
exposed to the following market risks:-

27.6{d,533
19169.992
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(t.) Crrnt'rrt:r1 Rrsft

'fhe currettcl' risk i.s tnirrimal rrs most of cash ancl cash equivalents held with
banks are clominated in Kenya Shillings.

tit) Pnc'c l(r.sl.

'Ihe lloard. collects Kshs. 18 per litre of diesel and petrol imported into the
countrv. J he Board Ls exposed to the extent that the levy on diesel and petrol
is reducccl or climinatctl duc to changes in the intcrnation.rl fucl prices,
irrflation or othcr nracro indicators.

'rlre 
R<-rarl Vlaintenance l-evy, is backed up by an Act of parliament and

clranges tlrereof require approval by parliament.

(iii1 ltrttrest Rnlt, ilrsk

I'lre Bo.rrti's firrancial conclition rnay be adversely affectecl as a result of
chartges in interest rate ltrvels. The irrterest rate risk is minimal as the Board
does rrot ltave anv lxlrrow,ings.

c) OTterational Itisk

Operatiortal risk is thc risk of direct or indirc'ct loss arising from a wide variety of
causcs associatcd with the Board's processes, personnel, technology and
infrastructure and from external factors other than credit, market and li"quidity
risks such as lcgal and regulatory requiremenb and generalty acceptabte sta;dardg
of corporate bchavior.

'Ilrc lloartl sceks to ensure that key operahional risks are managec{ in a timely ancl
effective n)anner tltrough a framework of policies, procedures a-ncl tools to identify,
asscss, rtronitor anrl report such risks.
'fhe Boarcl's objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance
of financi.rl lt'rsscs and danrage to the Board's reputation rvith overall cost
effectivencss and to avoid control procedures that restiict initiative and creativity.
'['hc prirttary responsitrility for the developmerrt and implementation of controls to
address oFrcratitulal risk is assigned to senior management. The responsibility is
supLrorted Lry thc t{evelopntetrt of overall standarcls for the managemen[ of
opcrational risk in the following areas:-

o Requirements for appropriate scgregation of duties, inclutling the
indcpendent authorization of transactions;

o Requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of financial bansactions;. Compliance rvith regulatory and legal requirernents;
. Documentation of conhols and procedures;
o Requirements for the yearly assessment of operational risks faced ancl the

adequacv of controls arrd procedures to ac{dres.s the risks ic{errtifiecl;
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o Requirement for the reporting of operational losses and proposed remedial
actipn,

o Development of Business Contingency Plans;
. Tralning and professional developmeng
r Ethlcal and business standards; and
. Risk mitigaEon, including insurance where it is effective.

Operational risks are documenbd in the'Framework for Management Control' and
are managed by flre Internal Audit function established to spearhead and coordinate
risk management activiHes. The measureo taken include proactively identifying,
analyzing ahd mitigating risks in all facets of the business.

d) Complianct anilRqulatory Risk

Compliance and regulatory risk includes the risk of non-compliance with regulatolv
requirements. The Board has complied with all externally imposed retluirements
tfuoughout the year.

c) LegelRiek

Legal risks is the risk of unexpecbd loss, including reputational loss, arising from
defective kdnsactions or contracb, claims being made or some other event resulting
in a liability or the loss for the Board, failure to protect the title to and inability to
control the rights to assets of the Board (including intellectual property right),
changes in law, or iurisdictional risk.

The Board manageo kgal risk through the legal function, legal risk policies and
procedures and the effective use of internal conbols and extemal lawyers.

RECEIPTS

2gL7flE 1. .zwt1r]_
' KShr'000 i KShs'000

'4.

r)

8.0

Road

Total Revenue
. - ?1t7!4,832

7JJ41,p.12

os,,tll,iu
62,1LLZEE

Revenue represenb receipts of Road Maintenance l-evy and Transit tolls from the
Kenya Revenue Authority and interest income,

The Board did not receive any hansfurs of any form, (including asseb, gifts,
donatione, goods and service-in-kind, advance receipts, pledges, expens$ paid on
behalf and cctrceseionary loans) from national and local govemment, public entities,
Donor & InElna6onal development agencies.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Conrinued)

9.0 DISBURSEMENTS OF FUNDS

'l'hc [-]oarcl .rllocatcs ftrrrds to thc road agcrrcics in accorclance r.r,ith the allocation
critcri,r set otrt irt thc'Keltva l{oads Board Act, 1999, and in line'r.r,ith tlre Constifution
o[ Ken\'.r, 2010 rvhich iuclueles funding to County Governnrenb as shown below:

('clrrnty Clovcrnmcnts i CgurrEl Roacls
Allocatjon by Ke,-v-1 Roqds Boarcl/Ministry- I Dever6pment of roacls
l'otal

Rggd-{,ge_n-c11:

K.!)lq $c1g<! 1. l]9.a-11
Ken.1,a National Highrvays Authority
Ktn-r'a Rural Roads Authority
Kcnva Urtran Roads Authorit)1 

.

Kr-trvir Wild lifc Service

Agency
Kt.nva lklads lloartl
Kcrr_\,a NatiorraI I Iighrva,l,s r\uthoritv
Ken1,a l{ural Iloacls Autirority
Kenya Urbal Roads Au.tho1l$
Kenya Wildlife Service
r\ lloca tion by Ken1,a Roltls B9.a rd / tvlin istrv
Coun1r, GoverrrnrenLs
Roads Annu i$, Programme
Other
'I'otal Disbursements
Aclcl: ReL.ases of Prior ),ear funds

; lq4ig!$-gd-!!qgs-q{ Rolds I Allocation
, Administration a0/.D

,10%, National Trunk Roads
National Rural Roads
National Urban Roads
Park Roads

22%
't0%

1%

15%

jpe 
r

190Zul

Ilffective Iulr'20] 5, tlre Board began collecting funcls for the Roads Annuity program
Based on the abovc, the Board r"lisbursed funds as foflorvs during thc ,vear:

201748 
-:,

KShs'000 I.-. I

1,269,472 .
2rr:161,1-?q,

l'1,438,299

3_0_1g1ll .___

SShs'000 |. v1,0? _,

--20,j15e,228
10,893,617

" p.3.6J,792. 5,106,3q1 l
525,000 - i00,000

5,2SO,OOO

. 7..,V9rryf_.-"-.- Z.iql,qqq-
10,290,000 9,g0o,oo0

4y,3/.s )
60.468,600 l

10"t.2?7 i

63.473.ffi

I'ota.l Funds Disbursed in the year 63,473.&0 Wgfl*:
10.0 cAslt AND CASH EQUTVALENTS

1a1 Analysis of bank and cash balances:

l lrcsc rt:;:rcse nt cash hcld at r,.rrious [>.rnks, .ts follor+,s:

zgl4rg_.
KShs'000

7

'0(x)
Amcrunts "h"lt! il lgsglS-yftglSy 31,324,284 40,914,525
Anrounts held in foreign currencv ; -. ---*--------:--_.---- . . -,:--ue4,2#., *galg*535
'I'otal

'['he fJclartl is not t'xprosed to credit risk on r'aslr anil bank balrrnces.rs the funds.rrc
helcl witlr sotttrcl firrancial institutions approverl by the Central llank of Kcnya.
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(b) Cash and cash equivalenle 
'ni' '

Bank CaehBabnes 3lJ4*tr

11.0 PAYABLES

These repnteent funds due to the road agencies and Roads Annuity Programme, but
not re as at 30tt' une 2018, as followsr

zatqfy1

tco$ng?.d),

For purpoqee of the caah flow staEment, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances
with less Ofan ft.ree montt6' mahrrity from the date of acquisition, including cash in
hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short tenn highly liquid investarents
with origirial mahrrides of three rnonths.

Analysis o( cash and cash equivalents is as set out below:-

2(n
KShe'0m KShs'0m,... -.'.':

19p1$45

KShs'000 ;

Funds I 3,747,424
Funds 7M,m _ _l?Esie.l

auitesa

12-0 ASSETS AVAITABLE FOR DISTRIBUTION

.-971!3 :-. .?q!6fl7
KShs '0q0 i . KShg'QQ0

Road Mlgr-!_eryqgc-e kyy 29,441,224 ! 19,1,69

Total i ngrt;r.q: ,Uer"*a

The funds aie allocaEd to the road agencies in the subsequent year in accordance
with the Kertya Roade Board Act,1999.

133 CASH GENERATED I. OM OPERATTONS

Reconciliation of Net Cash Florvs from Operating Activities to Surplus for the year:

NB:T
,l

These rcpretent amounb received over and above the approved budget for the year,
as 6llows:

i ry17fi$

Net asseB for distribution
tn balaxces

Inclgqse in Road Agency Igdl

I Net-" KShs'000

10,271,?32 8,645,188_ r

Ig@J4lt augoa&i

767,174(1?,

R6ad Acr
(oads An

l_-l{e!_qf_e!fl gr-u-s-.(lg}fromoperlling activities
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

14.0 CONTINGENT LIABIUTIES

Though the Board is involved in some legal proceedings, the directors believe based
on the information currently available, that *re Board does not have any contingent
liabilities which are likely to have a maErial effect on the results of the Eoardfa
operations, financial position or liquidity. Therefore, no provision has been made in
the financial statements.

15,0 FAIR VALUE

The directors consider that there is no maErial diffurence between the fair value and
carrying value of the company's financial assets and liabilities, where fair value
details have not been presenEd.

15.0 CAPITAL COMMTTMENTS

All capital commiEnents contracted for and authorized at the reporting period end
have been recognized in the financial statements.

17.0 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

The Directors are not aware of any matEr or circumstances arising since the md of
the financial year, not otherwise dealt with in the financial etaEments, which would
significantly affect the financial position of Kenya Roads Board Fund and results of
its operation as laid out in these financial stahments.

18.0 COMPARATIVES

Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusd to conform to fiartges in
presentation of the Financial Stahments as required by krknational Public Secbr
Accounting Standards, and any amendment whenever necessary in the current year.

19.0 CTJRRENCY

The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shiltingp (l(Shs'000)
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pnocnnss oN rotrow upor nuDrron,s RrcouguDlnorus

There are no au{it issues that were carried forward from FY zlrc / V .
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